CLARIFICATIONS TO
THE TENDER DOSSIER NO:1
Publication Reference: EuropeAid/138318/IH/SUP/TR

Subject:  Supply of Oral Vaccination against Rabies in Turkey

Location – Turkey
Further to the requests received from the tenderers, the following clarifications are provided:

	Question 1: 

As part of offer should be submitted “certified registration dossier in a CD format (or any other kind of the storage devices)”. What is meant exactly with this?

Answer 1: 

The certified registration dossier refers to the Item 1.1 of the Technical Specifications (TS). 

---
Question 2: 
Delivery date of the baits:

Taking into consideration the submission time and the requirements set out in the present tender, the suggested time period is considered very tight. Taking the normal procedures into account, the final contract is expected to be signed not earlier than December 2017 or even may be in January 2018 only.

· The short time between signature of the contract and the required delivery dates in the first half of January is not allowing sufficient time for the regular conduct of all the necessary preparations for all the 4.5 Mio vaccine baits for the first campaign at the same time. The normal preparation time is 3 months.

· Even if the preparation of the rabies vaccine baits will be possible and the contract is signed in December, this leaves only a few operative days to set up a reasonable and reliable frozen storage. Most of the time between expected signature of the contract and the expected delivery is a holiday period.

· There is a request of frozen storage of 3 months. The flight tender will be announced later. Past experience showed that delays can be expected. There might be a time gap between start of the 3 months storage from mid-January 2018 until the effective start of the aviation work, which will not be covered by the contractual obligation of the contractor (see this point also later).

Therefore, it is suggested to postpone the delivery date of the baits:

The delivery date of the baits and the start of the obligation for the 3 months frozen storage period shall be postponed by for example to 4 months after the signature of the supply contract so it would be approximately one month before starting of aerial dropping. It might even be better to link this date to the time of the completion of the subsequent ORV flight tender. This is even also an important point of reducing of any additional costs which maybe not really needed.

Answers 2: 

The first delivery period of the first campaign was postponed to 10 March – 30 March 2018. (Special Conditions (SC), Article 13)
Please refer to the Changes to the Tender Dossier No.1.

---

Question 3: 

Would a stepwise delivery of the rabies vaccine baits possible? A delivery in 2 (for example 2 + 2.5 Mio doses) or 3 tranches (each of 1 .5 Mb doses) would provide an additional security to maintain the frozen status of the vaccine baits in Turkey for the required period. The first delivery shall be at a defined time point (which would be preferably 1 -2 months later than the signature of the ORV purchase agreement, see one of the previous questions). The subsequent delivery or deliveries of rabies vaccine baits shall be within a defined period (for example within one month - to be defined) after the successful completion of the corresponding ORV aviation tender.

Answer 3: 


The programme of implementation of tasks remained unchanged excluding the first campaign of first phase. Within 20 days period for each campaign of each phase as specified in Article 13 of the SC, the delivery of all baits should be completed. The delivery plan of the baits within this period will be decided by the Contractor with the agreement of the Beneficiary. 
Please also refer to the Changes to the Tender Dossier No.1.
---

Question 4: 

- Under the section 1.2 of Annex II+III — Technical Specification (TS) “Offered oral rabies vaccine virus should contain one or more stable genetic marker(s) that can be used to discriminate the vaccine strain from field rabies virus. For this reason, the name and complete genome sequences of offered vaccine strain should be attached. Only, EU or OlE (World Organisation for Animal Health) or WHO (World Health Organization) reference laboratory results can be accepted.” 

The applicant considers that the inclusion of this requirement in the tender dossier is unduly beyond the rules prescribed by European Pharmacopoeia. Establishing of mandatory requirements beyond the scope of this regulation is the exclusive responsibility of European Pharmacopoeia Commission.
The safety of the vaccine produced by the applicant has been demonstrated in accordance with the relevant requirements of European Pharmacopoeia monograph EP: 0746, article Rabies Vaccine (Live, Oral) for foxes, paragraph 2-3-1., incl. following requirement: “the virus strain has one or more stable genetic markers that may be used to discriminate the vaccine strain from other rabies virus strains”. The vaccine also meets the factually related partial requirement for batch test: “3-1-2. A test is carried out to demonstrate the presence of the genetic marker.” The differentiation of the vaccination strain (part of the genome) from other strains for safety reasons has been proven by nucleic acid sequencing.

Evidence of test demonstrating the presence of the genetic marker performed by any independent laboratory, for example the National Reference Laboratory for Rabies or by the university laboratory should be quite sufficient to demonstrate compliance with the requirement in question. The applicant therefore considers the alleged requirement for submission only of EU or OIE or WHO reference laboratory results as unjustified and superfluous.
The applicant therefore asks the Contracting Authority to modify the required specifications.
Answer 4: 

Kindly be informed that European Pharmacopoeia sets out the general principles for both human and animal vaccine production procedures and do not contain any provisions regarding the test authority. Technical specification No. 1.2 clearly demonstrates the desired technical specification and according to the technical specification no 1.1, the oral vaccine should be certified and registered by the European Medicines Agency. Therefore, in addition to the European Pharmacopoeia Monograph (0746 Rabies Vaccine (Live, Oral) For Foxes and Racoon Dogs), Batch Tests or Batch productions are required. The results of the tests carried out to establish the existence of genetic markers should be accepted by the reference laboratories of the European Union, the OIE or the WHO, as it is a main requirement of the Beneficiary in its operations.
Therefore, the technical specifications remain unchanged. 
---

Question 5: 

Under the section 1.6 of Annex II+III — TS ‘Experimental data should be provided showing that individual foxes offered vaccine bait successfully seroconvert (with detectable levels of rabies virus antibodies) and survive a challenge with field rabies virus. This must be supported by studies published in peer-reviewed scientific papers and/or study reports authorized by WHO rabies collaborating centres, OIE or EU reference laboratories. The determination of the seroconversion rate is required as part of the post-campaign monitoring by the EC Health & Consumer Protection OG document ‘The Oral Vaccination of Foxes against Rabies’ (2002).”

Similarly to the previous objections, the appellant is again of the opinion that the inclusion of this requirement in the tender dossier is unduly beyond the rules prescribed by European Pharmacopoeia and Community Code. The appellant believes that the efficacy requirements prescribed by European Pharmacopoeia and Community Code are fully sufficient and any additional requirements in tender dossier are therefore unfounded and unnecessary.

The post-campaign monitoring cannot be performed by the manufacturer of the vaccine baits. Determination of the seroconversion rate by performing of seroconversion test from blood serum of free-ranging foxes is a task of national reference laboratories for rabies. The manufacturer of vaccine baits is not able to perform such monitoring. If this testing as a part of post-campaign monitoring is not performed by the national reference laboratories for rabies or if these laboratories do not provide results of this monitoring to manufacturer of the vaccine baits or does not publish results of this monitoring in scientific papers, the manufacturer has no option to obtain results of this monitoring. The manufacturer also has no option to force the national laboratories to perform this monitoring or to publish the results. It follows that the compliance with this requirement in the tender dossier does not depend on the manufacturer of the vaccine baits.

Successful seroconversion of vaccine bait can be proven by challenge test performed by the manufacturer of the vaccine or by an independent laboratory, for example the National Reference Laboratory for Rabies or by the university laboratory or it can be proven by declaration or articles (studies) published by these laboratories. The applicant therefore considers the alleged requirement for submission of studies for the seroconversion rate with experimental data from challenge test with field rabies virus published in peer-reviewed scientific papers or submission of study reports authorized by WHO rabies collaborating centres, OIE or EU reference laboratories as unjustified and superfluous.
The applicant therefore asks the Contracting Authority to modify the required specifications.

Moreover, the appellant is fully convinced that in order to evaluate the efficacy of the vaccine and effectiveness of vaccination campaign the publicity within the professional community and similar forms of propagation common in consumer goods are completely irrelevant, because of all the relevant criteria for acceptability and applicability of the vaccine are clearly defined directly in the relevant European Pharmacopoeia Monograph.
Answers 5: 
Studies on efficacy and immunity tests of oral vaccine should be included in the file as it is in line with the European Pharmacopoeia Monograph. Therefore, these must be supported by the documents required in the technical specifications as it is a main requirement of the Beneficiary in its operations.
Therefore, the technical specifications remain unchanged. 

---

Question 6: 

Contractor’s obligation:

Please clarify the end point of the contractor’s obligation of the end of the frozen storage period.

Currently it is not fully clear if:
· the aviation company is taking over the frozen storage on the day of the first flight; which would be end of the contractor’s obligation) or

· the contractor’s obligation is intended to extend until the loading of the baits into the airplane; which would mean that the contractor’s obligation is terminated at the start of the last flight.

Reasonably, this decision may be linked with the required location of the storage place.

A final clarification is felt to be important to point out who is the owner of the vaccines (very important in case anything is going wrong e.g. related to temperature) during the phases of storing/cooling? This is important to know because of insurance of vaccines during this period.

Answer 6: 

The Contractor will be responsible from the cold storage of the baits 2.5 M for each campaign for 3 months period. The 3 months frozen storage requirement will start after the completion of the delivery of all the baits for that campaign. After the delivery and the placement of the baits to the Etlik Veterinary Institute with ensuring the cold storage of the baits by suitable rooms defined as per the TS, bait samples will be taken for testing purposes. The cold storage room will be sealed and it will remain sealed until the start of the takeover by the Aviation Company in order for the aerial distribution. After taking off the seal, no later than 3 months, the Contractor’s obligation will end. 
During the period of cold storage, the Contractor is also obliged to provide the cold storage monitoring and temperature data log. (TS Item 1.15)

As specified in Article 31 of SC, until the issuance of the partial provisional acceptance for 2.5M baits for each campaign, the ownership will belong to the Contractor. 
Please also refer to the Changes to the Tender Dossier No.1.

---

Question 7: 

Place of storage:

Where will the frozen storages take place?

Shall the contractor be obliged to store the 2.5 million baits at one storage place, or in case of more storage places at a central location or area?

Alternatively, if the obligation of the contractor shall end when the baits are loaded to the corresponding flight, the baits shall rather be stored at multiple locations close to the airports used for the flights. Which is the background of the intension of the provision of the 3 months storage?

(This question is linked to the issue of the intended termination of the contractor’s obligation.)

Answer 7: 

The location of the cold storage will be Etlik Veterinary Control and Research Institute premises. The cold storage services will be provided for maximum 2.5M baits per each campaign by the Contractor. 2.5M doses of vaccine will be stored in at least two separate refrigerator trucks in Etlik Veterinary Control and Research Institute premises. (TS Item 1.15)
Please also refer to the Changes to the Tender Dossier No.1.
---

Question 8: 

What will be considered as a starting point of the 3 months frozen storage requirement? Please consider that the baits will be shipped with several trucks for example. They might arrive at different times.
Answer 8: 

The 3 months frozen storage requirement will start after the completion of the delivery of all the baits for that campaign. (TS Item 1.15)
---

Question 9: 

What will be the specifications for the required 3 months frozen storage?

One of the requirements seems to be the temperature. During the delivery and storage of the vaccine baits, -20°C temperature is sufficient for a limited period of 3 months. It is difficult to hire - 24°C refrigerated trucks, containers or a cold storage room. At present there is no -24°C cold storage service in Ankara. Is it possible to set the cold storage criterion as being between -15°C and -20°C?

Answer 9: 

The storage of the vaccines must be accordingly to the manufacturer’s specifications. The temperature for the cold storage room is revised as -20°C. (TS Item 1.15)
Please also refer to the Changes to the Tender Dossier No.1.
---

Question 10: 

How will aviation companies take the responsibility of the cold storages after 3 months?

Answer 10: 

(TS Item 1.15)

Please refer to Answer 6. 
Please also refer to the Changes to the Tender Dossier No.1.
---

Question 11: 

How will the monitoring of the 3 months frozen storages be done? Which authorities will be responsible for it?

Answer 11: 

The Contractor will be responsible from the monitoring for the 3 months cold storage period of 2.5M vaccine baits. The Contractor is expected to inform the Beneficiary and the Contracting Authority related with the control measures of the cold storage and within this period the Beneficiary and the Contracting Authority will also monitor the cold storage based on this control measures.

During the period of cold storage, the Contractor is also obliged to provide the cold storage monitoring and temperature data log. (TS Item 1.15)
Please refer to Article 31 of Special Conditions for details. 
Please refer to Answer 6.

Please also refer to the Changes to the Tender Dossier No.1.
---

Question 12: 

What will be the rules if the 3 months of frozen storage is over and the distribution work cannot start for any reason, and therefore further storage is required beyond the 3 months period? Who will undertake this additional cost not foreseen in the offer?

Answer 12: 

In this situation, after the 3 months period the End Beneficiary will assume the cost and the responsibility of the cold storage with aviation company. (TS Item 1.15)
---

Question 13: 
Is there possibility to deliver (part or all) vaccines under quarantine that means without PEI release because the vaccines have to be stored in Turkey for at least 3 months. This provides time to obtain and complete the batch release by PEI that can be followed by the local, Turkish release for distribution?

Answer 13: 

Due to the customs clearance obligations for the vaccines, PEI release is required. 
---

Question 14: 

When will the vaccinated area be published in order to be able to prepare and organize adequate cold stores and the logistic chains?

Answer 14: 

Information related with the vaccinated area is not under the scope of this tender.
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